
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, October 24, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-1329 Minutes from October 10, 2022.

 

Meeting Minutes 10-10-2022.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

22-1362 Design Hearing for future 2024 Paving Projects:

Linwood Ave (College Ave to Summer St)

 

Linwood Ave Informational Letter 10-06-22.pdf

Design Hearing -2024 Paving-Linwood Ave.pdf

Attachments:

5. Action Items

22-1078 Approve modifications to the City of Appleton Street Terrace Policy.

 

Existing Street Terrace Policy.pdf

Final MSC Memo Updated Street Terrace Policy.pdf

Street Terrace Policy Draft - MSC 10-22 v2.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/22/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

9/7/22 Common Council referred to the Municipal Services Committee

9/12/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Hold until first meeting in October

10/10/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Held to next meeting.

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 10/21/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21878
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3c4b6625-a16c-4f73-b77b-d04a5d7dd07a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21911
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e7d38456-0820-416f-888c-c6aa4a25c28c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cf7c0f86-d32b-416a-8f5b-7c55dc1bc264.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21628
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6528dbd3-331f-4afe-82bf-ffce3b418dbb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a5d93651-5cee-4428-98e4-4d26559613c3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0724506-c633-48e5-84db-bdb89770b8e0.pdf


October 24, 2022Municipal Services Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1366 Approve Functional Classification, Parking and Intersection Control North 

Edgewood Estates Subdivision & Sequoia Drive Extension.   

 

North Edgewood Est Sub Int Control.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

22-1330 Parking Utility Revenue Report for September 2022.

 

Parking Utility Revenue 9-22.pdfAttachments:

22-1331 2023 Budget Discussion

 

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 10/21/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21915
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e7923c0-00a4-454f-af1c-628a7ed1b46e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21879
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=98eb50a4-65b8-4ccd-9480-b4bc8c522350.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21880


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, October 10, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Roll call of membership2.

Firkus, Doran, Siebers and ThyssenPresent: 4 - 

Van ZeelandExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-1279 Minutes from September 26, 2022

 

Minutes from Sept. 26, 2022.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Doran, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Firkus, Doran, Siebers and Thyssen4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

22-1078 Approve modifications to the City of Appleton Street Terrace Policy.

 

Memo Updated Street Terrace Policy.pdfAttachments:

Held to next meeting.

Thyssen moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Firkus, Doran, Siebers and Thyssen4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

22-1280 Rankin Street, from 200’ south of Alton Street to College Avenue, be 

reconstructed with asphalt pavement and curb and gutter.  The 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21828
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ad54e445-1df9-496e-a4d8-c8e1f3888ae9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21628
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e5f56c70-19de-46e8-a6cc-e7b90eb24ed2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21829


October 10, 2022Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

dimensions of the Rankin Street reconstruction project are as follows:

200’ south of Alton Street - Alton St:  New asphalt pavement to be 

constructed to a width of 25’ from back of curb to back of curb, 

which is 1’ narrower than the existing street within this portion of 

the project.  Existing on-street parking to remain unchanged within 

this portion of the project.

Alton St - College Ave:  New asphalt pavement to be constructed 

to a width of 31’ from back of curb to back of curb, which is 2’ 

narrower than the existing street within this portion of the project.  

Existing on-street parking to remain unchanged within this portion 

of the project.

 

Firkus moved, seconded by Thyssen, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Firkus, Doran, Siebers and Thyssen4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

22-1292 Summit Street, from Packard Street to Elsie Street, be reconstructed 

with asphalt pavement and concrete curb & gutter to a width of 26’ from 

back of curb to back of curb, which is 2’ narrower than the existing street.  

Existing on-street parking would be restricted along the west side of 

Summit Street, within the project limits.

 

Firkus moved, seconded by Thyssen, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Firkus, Doran, Siebers and Thyssen4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Information Items6.

22-1286 Inspection Division Permit Summary Comparison Report for September 

2022.

 

Inspection Permit Summary September 2022.pdfAttachments:

22-1287 Bird E-Scooter Monthly Report-September 2022

 

Bird E Scooter Report-September 2022.pdfAttachments:

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21841
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21835
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=97b260df-bfb5-4f10-9245-f267b6f219aa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21836
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=114ab027-41be-470b-9c38-f684bde850fd.pdf


October 10, 2022Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Adjournment7.

Thyssen moved, seconded by Doran, that the  be adjourned. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Firkus, Doran, Siebers and Thyssen4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton



 

 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
Engineering Division 

100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI  54911 
Phone: 920-832-6474 

 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 
 
 

October 6, 2022 
 
 
 
Dear Property Owner:  

 
The City of Appleton is proposing to reconstruct the pavement on Linwood Avenue, from College Avenue to Summer 
Street, in 2024.  

 

The Municipal Services Committee of the Common Council will conduct a formal design hearing regarding the proposed 
reconstruction of Linwood Avenue.  At this meeting, the Committee will consider feedback from the general public 
regarding the proposed design after the Engineering Division has presented its proposal to the Committee.  The design 
hearing for Linwood Avenue is scheduled for Monday October 24th at 4:30 p.m. in Committee Room “A”, Sixth Floor at 
the City Center Building. 

 

The Committee will then meet again on Monday November 7th, 2022, at 4:30 p.m. to vote on the proposed street design 
that would then go to the full Common Council on November 16th, 2022. 

 

A copy of the proposed plans for Linwood Avenue can be previewed on the city website at the following link: 
http://www.appleton.org/government/public-works/project-information 

 

The current design option calls for replacing the existing pavement as follows: 

 

 College Ave – Franklin St 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 34’ wide from back of curb to back of curb.  The proposed 34’ wide 
street is 3’ narrower than the existing street (37’).   

o On-street parking would be restricted within this portion of the project. 
o Bike lanes would be implemented along both sides Linwood Avenue within this portion of the project. 
o Dedicated turn lanes would be added along Linwood Ave at College Ave. 

 

 College Ave – Badger Ave 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 33’ wide from back of curb to back of curb.  The proposed 33’ wide 
street is 4’ narrower than the existing street (37’).   

o On-street parking would be allowed along the east side only. 
o Traffic calming measures would be implemented at the intersections of Linwood Ave & Franklin St 

(narrowing curbs) and Linwood Ave & Packard St (raised crosswalk). 
o Raised medians for pedestrian crossings would be constructed at Linwood Ave & Winnebago St. 

 

http://www.appleton.org/government/public-works/project-information


 Badger Ave – Summer St 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 24’ wide from back of curb to back of curb.  The proposed 24’ wide 
street is 1’ narrower than the existing street (25’).  Narrowing the street allows 2 existing terrace trees along the east 
side to be saved.  

o  On-street parking would be restricted within this portion of the project. 
o Summer St – Wisconsin Ave 

 While not a part of the reconstruction project, on-street parking would be also be restricted along 
this block. 

 

- All existing driveway aprons within the project limits would be removed and replaced with new concrete aprons. 
 

- Sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main will be reconstructed, if necessary, in 2023. 
 

- 3 existing terrace trees in poor condition and 7 ash trees would be removed within the proposed project limits.  11 
existing terrace trees (3 west side/8 east side) would be saved by narrowing the roadway, as proposed, by 2’ on each 
side (4’ total) within this portion of the project. 

 
All persons interested are invited to express your views or concerns regarding the proposed reconstruction of Linwood 
Street.  The Municipal Services Committee meeting is open to the public.  Additionally, we have enclosed with this letter, 
a questionnaire that you can fill out and mail back to the Department of Public Works.  If you are unable to attend the 
meeting(s), feel free to contact me at 920-832-6484 or email at Jason.brown@appleton.org with any questions or 
comments.  
 

 Sincerely, 
                                                      
     Jason Brown, P.E. 

 Project Engineer   
   

Enclosure 
 

c:  Alderperson 
 

mailto:Jason.brown@appleton.org


CITY OF APPLETON - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

PROJECT QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

LINWOOD AVENUE – College Avenue to Summer Street  
 
 
Name:    _________________________________________ Property Owner _________ 
 
Address: _________________________________________ Tenant                  _________ 
 

   _________________________________________ Business Owner _________ 
 
Email:    __________________________________________ 
 
Phone:   ___________________________________________          
 
 
The following discussion pertains to the project under consideration: 
 

 
1. Have you experienced any parking problems in your neighborhood? 
 

Yes ________ No ________  Comments ________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Have you experienced street flooding in your neighborhood? 
 

Yes ________ No ________  Comments ________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________
 
 
3. Have you experienced an overactive sump pump or sidewalk icing on your property? 
 

Yes ________ No ________  Comments _______________________________ 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Have you experienced sanitary sewer backup in your basement? 
 

Yes ________ No ________ 
 

If yes, state how often and what was the problem. ______________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
5. During the course of this project, you will be blocked out of your driveway for possibly 6 

to 8 weeks.  Do you or do you know of anyone within the project limits who has special 
needs that may require certain access requirements during the construction? 

 
Yes ________ No ________ 

 
If yes, please state your concerns: ____________________________________________ 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
6. My primary concern regarding the proposed project is: 
 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
  
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
           _                              _______________________________________________________ 

 
 ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Thank you. 

 
 
 
       
       ATTN JASON BROWN 

CITY OF APPLETON 
PUBLIC WORKS 
100 N APPLETON ST FL 5 
APPLETON, WI 54911 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 







BlockDL
Typewritten Text
EXISTING CITY POLICY - For Information Only



Final MSC Memo Updated Street Terrace Policy.doc 

                 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 
TO:  Members of the Municipal Services Committee 

FROM:  Danielle Block, Director 

SUBJECT: Revised Street Terrace Policy 

DATE:  October 24, 2022 
 

 
On June 15, 2022 Resolution #7-R-22 Street Terrace Policy Modifications was submitted by Alderperson Del 
Toro.  Department of Public Works staff worked to draft a proposal to allow for additional uses within the 
Street Terrace.  As part of that review, staff explored the potential benefits as well as any possible unintended 
consequences of the proposed changes.   
 
A first draft of the modified Street Terrace Policy was presented to the Committee on August 22, 2022 and 
was recommended for approval to the Common Council.  On September 7, 2022, the Common Council 
referred the item back to Municipal Services Committee for discussion on September 12, 2022.  During the 
Committee meeting on September 12, 2022 – staff was asked to redraft the policy.  Specifically, staff was 
asked to redraft the policy:  

 for clarity; 
 to specify acceptable uses and uses that require a permit; 
 and to address safety concerns related to planting height and width. 

 
Attached for your review and consideration is the final draft of the Street Terrace Policy.  The Public Works 
and Legal Departments have reviewed the draft to address the items listed above.   
 
Item “A” discusses rules for planting in the street terrace.  According to current Code plantings within the 
street terrace are allowed up to a maximum of 36-inches in height, as dictated by vision clearance code 
language.   
 
Item “B” discusses uses that are acceptable.  If adopted, this policy would now allow flower and vegetable 
gardens and mulch (two previously unacceptable uses). 
 
Item “C” specifies uses that are not acceptable, unless a terrace occupancy permit is approved by Municipal 
Services and Common Council. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this policy.  The goal was to create a policy revision that was easier to 
understand and implement.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 



 

 

                 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 
 
DRAFT 10/22 

 

CITY OF APPLETON 
STREET TERRACE POLICY 

 
The City of Appleton will not be responsible for repairing or replacing any part of privately owned 
improvements placed in the street right-of-way. 
 

A. Any use of the street terraces shall be contingent upon the following: 
 
1. Compliant with Weed Control Ordinance, weeds and grass must not exceed 8 inches in 

height. 
2. Ground elevation flush with sidewalk.  No elevated planting beds are permitted. 
3. Any private plantings or mulch in the terrace shall be fully confined within the terrace area 

without the aid of structural supports or fencing.  Under no circumstance shall any plant 
encroach over a sidewalk, curb or roadway shoulder. 

4. All private plantings shall comply with City required intersection and private sight distance 
requirements as detailed in §23-50 (g) Vision Corner (1) Street Corner and (2) Private 
Driveway.  In order to provide a clear view at intersection for all users of the traveled way, 
an area within each intersection shall be kept clear of any plant over 36-inches in height. 

a. The vision corner is described as the triangular area enclosed by a straight line 
connecting a point on each street right-of-way line, which point is twenty-five feet 
from the intersection of the right-of-way lines.   

 

 



 

 

b. The vision corner is described as the triangular area enclosed by a straight line 
connecting the point ten feet from the intersection of the street right of way and 
private driveway. 

 
5. For roadways with designated on-street parking, plantings shall not be placed within two feet 

of the back of the curb or edge of shoulder. 
a. For roadways with permitted parking, plantings within two feet of the back of curb or 

edge of shoulder shall not exceed 8 inches in height. 
b. For roadways with prohibited parking at all times, plantings shall not exceed 36-

inches in height. 
6. The owner accepts full responsibility for the care and maintenance of the plantings and 

understands that planting in the terrace are made at their own risk and that they may be 
removed at any time, and for any reason, by the City without compensation.  The owner 
seeking to place permissible plantings in the terrace is responsible for contacting Diggers 
Hotline to identify and mark any underground utilities prior to digging within the right-of-
way. 

7. Refuse and recycling containers along with any other items placed in the terrace area for City 
pickup (including large items, fall leaf storage) shall be placed at least 3-feet away from any 
terrace plantings. 

8. All private plantings shall be cut down to ground level and removed from the terrace prior to 
October 5th, to accommodate the City’s fall leaf collection process. 

 
B. The following conditions ARE acceptable uses of street terraces under City Policy and Code, 

NO permit required: 
 
1. Mowed turf grass. 
2. Public trees. 
3. Private plants under 3-feet in height, which would meet sight distance requirements listed in 

item A.4. above. 
4. Home gardens under 3-feet in height, which include flower and vegetable gardens, which 

would meet sight distance requirements listed in item A.4. above. 
5. Mulch. 



 

 

 
C. The following ARE NOT acceptable uses of street terraces unless a terrace occupancy permit 

request is approved by the Municipal Services Committee and Common Council.   
 
Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to, the following:  
1. Private plants in excess of 3-feet in height. 
2. Hedges or woody plantings. 
3. Traffic hazards such as rocks, railroad ties, fencing, etc. 
4. Loose stone or sand surfaces. 
5. Non-native or invasive species of vegetation with the exception of flower and vegetable 

gardens. 
6. Private trees.  
7. Plants within 3-feet of a fire hydrant or other City/private utility surface infrastructure. 
8. Private pavement including, but not limited to, asphalt, brick, flag stone or concrete.  
 
All Council approved terrace occupancy permits require a certificate of insurance and payment 
of a $40 annual terrace occupancy permit fee, which shall be valid until December 31st of the 
year of it is issued.  In addition to any exceptions granted under the permit, all other conditions 
listed in this policy shall remain in effect. 

 



Page 1 of 1 
C:\Users\BlockDL\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\ECFEBEDF\North Edgewood Estates Subdivision Int Control.docx 

 
 
 
To: Municipal Services Committee 
 
From: Eric S. Lom, City Traffic Engineer 
 
Date: October 18, 2022 
 
Re: North Edgewood Estates Subdivision & Sequoia Dr Extension  
 Functional classification, parking, and traffic control 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The North Edgewood Estates Subdivision and associated Sequoia Drive extension are nearing completion.  Outlined 
below are the remaining traffic-related ordinance changes associated with these new roadways. 
 
FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 
Sequoia Drive will function as a north/south Collector roadway servicing the subject area.  As such, it is appropriate 
to functionally classify Sequoia Drive as a Collector roadway and a Through Street.  To accomplish this, the following 
ordinance action is required: 
 

The following streets be designated as a Through Streets as defined in Chapter 19 of the Municipal 
Code and be designated as Collectors on the official Arterial/Collector Street Map. 
 

1. “Sequoia Drive from Rubyred Drive to the north City limits.” 
 
 
INTERSECTION CONTROL 
Based on its functional classification as an Arterial roadway, all streets intersecting with Broadway Drive must be 
controlled with Stop signs as required in Section 19-41 of the Municipal Code.  To accomplish this, the following 
ordinance action is required: 
 

1. Create: “Install stop signs on Sequoia Drive at Broadway Drive." 
 
 
PARKING 
Based on the roadway designs that are specified in the development agreements, various parking restrictions are 
necessary: 
 

1. Create: “Parking be prohibited on the south side of Rubyred Drive from French Road to Sequoia Drive.” 
2. Create: “Parking be prohibited on the east side of Sequoia Drive from Rubyred Drive to Broadway 

Drive.” 
 
 

“. . .   meeting community needs . . .  enhancing quality of life.”  

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
Engineering Division – Traffic Section 

2625 E. Glendale Avenue 
Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL  (920) 832-5580 
FAX  (920) 832-5570 




	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_Meeting Minutes 10-10-2022
	0002_1_Linwood Ave Informational Letter 10-06-22
	Linwood Ave Questionnaire.pdf
	LINWOOD AVENUE – College Avenue to Summer Street


	0002_2_Design Hearing -2024 Paving-Linwood Ave
	0003_1_Existing Street Terrace Policy
	0003_2_Final MSC Memo Updated Street Terrace Policy
	0003_3_Street Terrace Policy Draft - MSC 10-22 v2
	0004_1_North Edgewood Est Sub Int Control
	0005_1_Parking Utility Revenue 9-22

	Name: 
	Property Owner 1: 
	Property Owner 2: 
	Address 1: 
	Address 2: 
	Business Owner: 
	Email: 
	Phone: 
	Yes 1: 
	Yes 2: 
	No: 
	Comments: 
	Yes 1_2: 
	Yes 2_2: 
	No_2: 
	Comments_2: 
	Yes: 
	No_3: 
	Comments_3: 
	Yes_2: 
	No_4: 
	If yes state how often and what was the problem 1: 
	If yes state how often and what was the problem 2: 
	Text1: 
	needs that may require certain access requirements during the construction: 
	No_5: 
	undefined: 
	If yes please state your concerns 1: 
	If yes please state your concerns 2: 
	My primary concern regarding the proposed project is 1: 
	My primary concern regarding the proposed project is 2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 


